
  

New Castle Town Council Work Session 
Tuesday, June 18, 2019, 6:30 p.m. 

1. Discussion: Trash & Recycling Services 

 
 

Agenda 
New Castle Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, June 18, 2019, 7:00 p.m. 

Starting times on the agenda are approximate and intended as a guide for Council.  

The starting times are subject to change by Council, as is the order of items on the agenda.  

 

Call to Order 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Roll Call 
Meeting Notice 
Conflicts of Interest 
Agenda Changes 
 

Citizen Comments on Items not on the Agenda 
     -Comments are limited to three minutes- 
 
Consultant Reports 
Consultant Attorney 
Consultant Engineer 
 
 
Items for Consideration 
 

A. Proclamation: July Parks and Recreation Month (7:05 p.m.) 
 

B. Consider a Request and Mutual Agreement Between Jim Columbo and the 

Town of New Castle for a 30-Day Extension of a PUD Hearing Date for 
Eagle’s Ridge PUD at Lakota Canyon Ranch (7:20 p.m.) 

 
C. Executive Session (1) for conference with Town Attorney for purpose of 

receiving legal advice on specific legal questions under C.R.S. Section 24-6-

402(4)(b); and (2) for purpose of determining positions relative to matters 
that may be subject to negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations, 

and/or instructing negotiators, under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(e) 
regarding the purchase of Ware & Hinds ditch shares (7:35 p.m.) 

 

D. Consider Termination of the Ware & Hinds Ditch Contracts (7:50 p.m.) 
 

Town of New Castle 
450 W. Main Street 

PO Box 90 
New Castle, CO  81647 

Administration Department 
Phone: (970) 984-2311 

Fax:   (970) 984-2716 

www.newcastlecolorado.org 

Posted: __________ 
Remove: 6/19/19 

http://www.newcastlecolorado.org/


E. Consider Declaration of Breach of Development Agreement for Lakota Ridge 
Senior Apartments and Authorizations of Enforcement Remedies (7:55 

p.m.) 
 

F. Golf Cart/OHV Open House Findings Report (8:10 p.m.) 
 

G. Executive Session (1) to discuss the purchase, acquisition, lease, transfer, 

or sale of real, personal or other property interest under C.R.S. Section 24-
6-402(4)(a); and (2)  for the purpose of determining positions relative to 

matters that may be subject to negotiations, developing strategy for 
negotiations, and/or instructing negotiators under C.R.S. Section 24-6-
402(4)(e) and concerning town-owned property (8:25 p.m.) 

 
H. Consent Agenda (8:40 p.m.) 

Items on the consent agenda are routine and non-controversial and will be approved by one 

motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a council member or 

citizen requests it, in which case the item will be removed from the consent agenda. 

May 7, 2019 council minutes 

May 21, 2019 council minutes 

May 29, 2019 special council minutes 

Resolution TC 2019-10 – Supporting a Charge Ahead Colorado Grant Application for Electric 

     Vehicle Charge Stations 

   

Staff Reports (8:45 p.m.) 

Town Administrator 
Town Clerk 
Town Planner 
Public Works Director 
 
Commission Reports (9:00 p.m.) 
Planning & Zoning Commission 
Historic Preservation Commission 
Climate Action Advisory Committee 
Senior Program 
RFTA 
AGNC 
GCE 
EAB 
 
Council Comments (9:10 p.m.) 
 
 
Adjourn (9:30 p.m.) 





5 
 

NRPA 2019 Park and Recreation Month Key Messages 
 
General Key Messages 

• Since 1985, Americans have celebrated Park and Recreation Month in July to promote 
the importance of parks and recreation in health and wellness, conservation and social 
equity, and to recognize the thousands of park and recreation employees that maintain 
our nation’s local, state and community parks.  
 

• Through efforts by NRPA, the U.S. House of Representatives passed an official 
resolution for Park and Recreation Month in 2009 and introduced the resolution in 
2017 and 2018.  
 

• Park and recreation agencies across the country are recognizing the month with 
summer programs, events, contests, commemorations and celebrations.  
 

• Park and recreation services are vital for our communities — from protecting open 

space and natural resources, to helping fight obesity and providing activities and 

resources for all walks of life — Park and Recreation Month encourages everyone to 

reflect on the exponential value parks and recreation brings to communities.     

2019 Key Messages  
• This July, explore all the fun and games offered in local parks and recreation! With 

everything from summer camps to sports leagues and special events, there are plenty 
of ways to get in the game. 
 

• July is the perfect time to get out and see the great things happening at your local 
parks and recreation centers and meet the people who make it all happen.  
 

• It’s Game On at your local parks and recreation center! We’re celebrating Park and 

Recreation Month with the National Recreation and Park Association by highlighting all 

of the great ways to play and have fun with us this July.  

 

• NRPA encourages all people that support parks and recreation to share the fun, 

games and other exciting things offered at their parks and recreation centers with the 

hashtag #GameOnJuly. 

 

• For more information visit www.nrpa.org/july.   

http://www.nrpa.org/july


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUN  MON  TUE WED  THU FRI  SAT 
 

 
 

1 
Hike Mtn. 

Medaris Trail 
 

 
2 
Play a Round of 

Disc Golf 

3 
Hike Colorow 

Trail 

4 
Enjoy a picnic in 

the park 

 
5 
Play Pickleball

6 
Take a family 
camping trip 

 
7 
Visit Grand River

Park  

 
8 
Join New Castle 
Running Club for
a weekly run 

 
9 
Lunchtime walk 

break 

10 
Fly a Kite 

11 
Community 

Market at Burning
Mtn. Park 

 
12 
Try out Mtn. 

Bike 

13 
Hogback Hustle 

5k Run 

 
14 
Go fishing on 
The CO River 

 
15 
Plant flowers in 

a garden 

 
16 
Play “catch” 
with your 
freinds 

17 
Dip your toes 
into the river 

18 
Community 

Market at Burning
Mtn. PArk  

 
19 
Read a book 

outside under a 
tree 

20 
Dirty Hog Dash 

@ VIX 

 
21 
Go fishing at  
Alder Park 

 
22 

Yoga 

 
23 
Grab some 
friends for a 
game of tennis 

24 
Go swimming 

25 
Community 

Market at Burning
Mtn. Park  

 
26 
Visit Bear Dance 

Park 

27 
Take a family 
bike ride 

 
28 
Take a hike on a 
new trail 

 
29 
Work in the 
garden 

 
30 
Take “Frido” for 

a walk 

31 
Take a spin at 
Hogback Skate 

Park  JULY  2019 
 



1 | P a g e  

 

 

Memorandum 
 

Date:  June 12, 2019 
 
To:   Mayor and Council 
 
Subject: Extension of PUD Hearing Date 
 
From:  David Reynolds 
 
Purpose: 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to seek an extension of the time allowed for the final Processing of a Planned 
Unit Development Application (PUD). 
 
Per Municipal Code Section 17.100.080, a PUD Application which has received a final written decision from the 
Planning and Zoning Commission shall have not more than 60 days to receive a final decision from Town Council.  
Such final decision from Town Council may extend beyond 60 days if mutually agreed to by Town Council and the 
applicant. 
 
Developer Jim Columbo / Malo Development LLC received a final decision from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission on May 8, 2019 concerning his application to develop property along Castle Valley Blvd.   Mr. Columbo 
has been working with staff to provide updates to his development plans as required in the conditions of the 
Planning and Zoning findings.  As of June 12, 2019 Mr., Columbo has not fully completed his final drawings related 
to various aspects of the project.  Mr. Columbo and staff discussed the possibility of delaying the first Council 
meeting that would review this project until such time that Mr. Columbo’s staff can make the needed changes to 
the applicable drawings and Town Staff has had the opportunity to review and comment.   
 
Mr. Columbo was offered the opportunity to present his project as designed on June 18th, which would allow 
Council to consider the project within the required 60-day window, or push the first Council review back to July 2nd. 
Mr. Columbo decided to ask for a postponement of his first meeting with Town Council which was scheduled for 
June 18th and seek an extension of the 60-day window for a final Council Decision.   
 
Because the Municipal Code states that an extension of the 60-day final decision shall be by mutual agreement, 
Town Council is being asked to consider an extension of the time period needed for a final decision in this matter. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 

Staff recommends that Council extend the 60-day final decision period for this application for an additional 
period of 30 days.   

Office of the Town Administrator 
Phone: (970) 984-2311 

Fax:  (970) 984-2716 

www.newcastlecolorado.org 

        Town of New Castle 
                450 W. Main Street 

                             PO Box 90 

         New Castle, CO  81647 
 

 
 
 

http://www.newcastlecolorado.org/


1 | P a g e  
 

 
Memorandum 

 
Date:    June 12, 2019 
 
To:      Mayor and Council 
 
Subject:  Water Rights Purchase Update 
 
From:    David Reynolds 
 
 
Purpose: 
 
On May 22, 2019 the Town entered into two contracts to purchase a total of 18 shares in the Ware and Hinds Ditch 
Association.  The purpose of this agenda item is to discuss the findings of the Due Diligence Review that was 
preformed in accordance with the terms of the contracts. 
 
Staff shall provide Council with the findings of the Town’s Water Engineer as well as Staff Recommendations 
regarding this purchase. 
 
Council may direct Staff to continue in the execution of these contracts or terminate these contracts based on the 
Due Diligence findings. 

Office of the Town Administrator 
Phone: (970) 984-2311 
Fax:  (970) 984-2716 
www.newcastlecolorado.org 

        Town of New Castle 
                450 W. Main Street 
                             PO Box 90 
         New Castle, CO  81647 



June 10, 2019 

Dave Reynolds, and John Wenzel 
P.O. Box 90 
New Castle, CO 81647 

Dear: Dave, and John l 

At your and the Town of New Castle’s request, Zancanella & Associates has reviewed 
the attached deeds and spread sheets that are associated with the  Ware and Hinds Ditch 
shares that are currently owned by John Kuersten  (Kuersten deed BO).  Mr. Kuersten is 
currently offering, 18 shares, to the Town of New Castle for $15,000  per share. As you 
are aware water rights are often transferred and sold in terms of Historic Consumptive 
use Credit or HCU credits. To be able to change a water right from an irrigation use (April 
– October) to a municipal use (Year round use) there are many factors that must be
considered: 

1. Did the right divert a full supply of water?  At least since 1994 through 2019 it is
not clear where or if the water rights being offered were fully used (see CB 1994 
purchase deed)   

2. In addition, the where the water was used must be available to “dry up” to allow
the transfer of the HCU credits. Land that was transferred in the deed from 
Burning Mountain Land and Cattle LLC to the CB MINERALS COMPANY LLC 
for the 1994 purchase was:  

Draft



 
 

Zancanella & Associates, Inc.    Page 2 
June 10, 2019 

The above referenced legal description is shown in yellow on the Air Photo below. 
According to the Bargain and Sale Deed, CB minerals also purchased 50 shares of the 
Ware and Hinds Ditch  12/24/1994.   
 
It is not clear to Zancanella and Associates where these 50 shares of Ware and Hinds 
water purchased by CB minerals was originally used. The property shown in yellow is 
the property that was identified in the Burning Mountain Land and Cattle LLC Deed to 
CB Minerals deed and it does not appear to be irrigated, or that it can be irrigated. For 
the period from 1994 – 2019 (25 years) there may be a question of non-use unless the 
40 shares of water were leased to another shareholder under the Ware and Hinds 
Ditch, possibly the RE-2 School district. 
 

 
 
 
CB Minerals sold Fred B Chaney 10 shares on 9/3/2004 of the 50 shares that CB 
Minerals purchased (See combined recent sales Chaney deed).  
 
I believe the water associated with the Chaney shares was moved down the ditch from 
Section 1 and then used on Fred Chaney’s property in Peach Valley which is shown in 
pink under Section 4 of the Ware and Hinds Ditch.  This was a down ditch transfer. I do 
not believe that a water court change case was processed in 2004. The it was considered 
a change of field use under the same ditch, so no water court action was required.  
 
Before the Town of New Castle could transfer this water, the Town would need 
understand where the historic use of the remaining 40 shares originally occurred.  Can 
the land be removed from irrigation or has it already been removed? To take credit for 
the change to the to the New Castle point of diversion the Town would need to remove 

Draft



 
 

Zancanella & Associates, Inc.    Page 3 
June 10, 2019 

the water from irrigation use to the new municipal use at the Town of New Castle point 
of diversion.   
 
 

 
 
Perhaps when the property was sold to the RE-2 School District the water rights were 
retained by the original owners. This would make some degree of sense as the water is 
identified as being part of Section 1 of the Ware and Hinds Ditch.  The school property 
would account for approximately 15.5 acres of historically irrigated land. The Town of New 
Castle owns the area south of Highway 6, a portion of the land south of the Railroad 
ROW, and Previously owned the area under I-70, all of which may have been historically 
irrigated prior to the construction of the interstate. Generally, CDOT does not acquire the 
water rights associated with a sale or condemnation and the rights remain with the original 
owners. While these are possibilities it would take substantial investigation to prove such 
claims for water right transfer purposes. 
 

Draft



 
 

Zancanella & Associates, Inc.    Page 4 
June 10, 2019 

 
 
The Ware and Hinds Ditch was decreed with a duty of water of 1 CFS/ 50 acres or 0.02 
CFS per share   
 
For comparison we have assumed the value of the Ware and Hind Shares to be the value 
to replace that water with a Wolford contract from the Colorado River District.  The current 
price of a  Wolford Contract is $194 /AF on an annual basis, if we assume 4% for 40 years 
for a uniform annual series $194/ year  = 19.79 x  $194 =  $3,839 present value/ AF 
 

1. From the Ditch company 40 shares = 0.802 cfs   
2. If we assume a typical duty of water is 1 cfs / 50 acres, or 1 share per acre. 
3. 18 acres would require 18 shares. 

 

If we assume 18 shares could irrigate 18 acres and that each acre consumed 2.5 AF, 
annually the calculated HCU credits would be 45 AF HCU credits X $ 3,839 /AF = 
$172,755. Which would be the value of 18 shares of Ware and Hinds water, based on 
the value of a Wolford contract. 
 

Draft



 
 

Zancanella & Associates, Inc.    Page 5 
June 10, 2019 

Due to the complication of the historic use, and the potential 25 year period of non-use, 
the ability to dry the land up with a dry up covenant, and the limitations associated with 
the minimum streamflow, we believe that it would be difficult to use this water in the Town 
of New Castle’s water system. The best use may be to keep the water in the ditch at the 
school or at the Town Property.     
 
By comparison in Decree 87CW373 a total of 333 acres (140 acres under Red Rock Ditch 
& 193 acres under the Coryell Ditch) irrigated at 1.34 af/ac for a total of 446.22 af.  I would 
consider these ditches water short or having less than a full supply of water. The decree 
went on to define water usage within the Castle Valley Development as an EQR is 3.5 
people at 100 gallons per day with 5 percent consumptive use.  In addition, there is 2,500 
sq/ft of lawn per EQR at 2.26 Af application rate, 70 percent efficiency rate for a 
consumptive use rate of 1.56 af/ac. The decree indicates that the water is to be used 
within Castle Valley Development. These are limitations associated with the 1987 decree 
and the restrictions in a new change case will only get worse. 
 
The proposed 18 shares will net only a small volume of water, i.e. 45 AF. 
If we assume that approximately 18 shares of Ware and Hinds Ditch water yielded 
approximately 45 AF of water per year. The volume of water that and could be transferred 
to the New Castle point of diversion is shown in Table 1 below:   
 
Table 1 (estimated HCU distribution) 
 

AF  gpm cfs 
May 4 29.2 0.07 
June 10 75.4 0.17 
July 11 80.3 0.18 
August 9 65.7 0.15 
September 7 52.8 0.12 
October 4 29.2 0.07 
Total 45    

 

 
Shares  cfs /share Total cfs 

 18  0.02  = 0.36  
 

 
Even considering all of the above mentioned limitations it is prudent to consider 
acquiring a senior water right that is available in perpetuity, vs a contract, therefore  
 
We would recommend the Town consider the offering John Kuersten the 
following : 
 
18 shares X $10,000 * = $180,000  
 
*table of recent sales below – max per share price $10,000/share 
 
 

Draft



 
 

Zancanella & Associates, Inc.    Page 6 
June 10, 2019 

Listed below is a summary of the recent sale activity of the transactions associated with 
the Ware and Hinds Ditch.  
 

 
  

 

 
Thomas A Zancanella  
Thomas A Zancanella | P.E. 
Office: 970.945.5700 | 970.379.2926 | Fax: 970.945.1253   
taz@za-engineering.com 
 
Zancanella & Associates Inc. | Engineering Consultants 
1011 Grand Avenue | Glenwood Springs, CO 81601 

Cc: Mary Elizabeth Geiger 
 
 
 
 
Incorporation of the Ware and Hinds? 

Sale Date Price Price/Share

Burning Mountan Land and Cattle

CB 12/22/1994 50 $10,000.00 $200.00

CB 12/22/1994 40 $10,000.00 $250.00
Fred Chaney 9/3/2004 10 $80,000.00 $8,000.00

CB
Chet & Meriya Stickler 4/11/2019 15 $112,500.00 $7,500.00

Kursten 4/11/2019 25 $187,500.00 $7,500.00

Kursten 25 shares * 4/11/2019 19 $142,500.00 $7,500.00
Lisa Martin 4/25/2019 2 $16,000.00 $8,000.00

Arthur & Lampriel Armijo 4/25/2019 2 $20,000.00 $10,000.00
Fred and Linda Kuersten 4/25/2019 2 $16,000.00 $8,000.00

Recent Sales Ware and Hinds  Ditch

* of the 25 shares of Ware and Hinds Ditch it appears that Kursten still owns 19 shares of which 18 shares 
are for sale at $15,000 per shareDraft



Sale Date

Burning Mountan Land and Cattle

CB 12/22/1994 50

CB 12/22/1994 40
Fred Chaney 9/3/2004 10

CB
Chet & Meriya Stickler 4/11/2019 15

Kursten 4/11/2019 25

Kursten 25 shares * 4/11/2019 19
Lisa Martin 4/25/2019 2

Arthur & Lampriel Armijo 4/25/2019 2
Fred and Linda Kuersten 4/25/2019 2

Recent Sales Ware and Hinds  Ditch

* of the 25 shares of Ware and Hinds Ditch it appears that Kursten still owns 19 sha
sale at $15,000 per share



Price Price/Share

$10,000.00 $200.00

$10,000.00 $250.00
$80,000.00 $8,000.00

$112,500.00 $7,500.00
$187,500.00 $7,500.00

$142,500.00 $7,500.00
$16,000.00 $8,000.00
$20,000.00 $10,000.00
$16,000.00 $8,000.00

ares of which 18 shares are for 























EFsMt4KNMIMMMMEIM

s od°MeIEEÑRFIELD COUNTYC0

When recorded, please return to:

Fred and Linda Kuersten

4555 County Road 214

Silt,CO 81652

QUITCLAIM DEED FOR WATER RIGHTS

THIS DEED isdated April2.__r,2019, and ismade between John Kuersten, the "Grantor",
and Fred and Linda Kuersten, collectivelythe "Grantee,"whose legaladdressis4555 County
Road 214, Silt,Colorado 81652.

Grantor, for and in considerationof the sum of Sixteen Thousand Dollars ($16,000),the

receiptand sufficiencyof which ishereby acknowledged, does hereby remise,release,selland

QUITCLAIM unto the Grantee,and the Grantee'sheirsand assigns,forever,allthe right,title,

interest,claim and demand which the Grantor has in and to the followingdescribedwater rights
locatedin GarfieldCounty, Colorado:

Two (2) sharesof Class A stock in the Ware and Hinds Ditch,with itsheadgate
locatedon the west bank of Elk Creek, tributaryto the Colorado River,ata point
in the NE1/4 of Section 36, T. 5 S., R. 91 W., 6* P.M., Garfield County,

Colorado, adjudicated in: Case No. 103, Adjudicated on 5/11/1889 with

AppropriationDate 10/1/1883 for5.0 c.f.s.,with AppropriationDate of 3/1/1886

for 10.3 c.f.s.,and with AppropriationDate 5/1/1888 for 5.5 c.f.s.;Case No. 767,

Adjudicated on 11/15/1897 with AppropriationDate 4/18/1896 for 1.6c.f.s.;Case

No. 779, Adjudicated on 6/15/1898 with Appropriation Date of 3/3/1896 for 0.2

c.f.s;Case No. 883, Adjudicated on 12/18/1900 with Appropriation Date of

10/8/1898 for 3.6 c.f.s.;and Case No. 3431, Adjudicated on 1/11/1943 with

AppropriationDate of 3/4/1921 for21.3 c.f.s.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the same, togetherwith alland singularthe appurtenancesand

privilegesthereuntobelonging,or in anywise thereuntoappertaining,and allthe estate,right,

title,interestand claim whatsoever of the Grantor,eitherin law or equity,to the only proper use,

benefitand behoof ie antee,and theGrantee'sheirsand assigns,forever.

IN WIT EREOF, the Grantor has executed thisdeed on thedatesetforthabove.

By ohn Kuersten

STATE OF COLORADO )

) ss.

GARFIELD COUNTY )

The foregoinginstrumentwas acknowledged beforeme this25 day of or;1 , 2019, by
John Kuersten.

Witness my hand and officialseal. MELINDAD BROWN

My commission expires:941- Zmo iNOTARYPUBLIC-STATEOFCOLORADO

Notaryidentification#20164031948
MyCommissionExpires8/2J12020

Nofary Pubhc





ElllF ENM WEEfMMMrM Ell

0 Do e RFIELDCOUNTYC0

When recorded, please return to:

Lisa Martin

3495 County Road 214

Silt,CO 81652

QUITCLAIM DEED FOR WATER RIGHTS

THIS DEED isdated April zç, 2019, and ismade between John Kuersten, the "Grantor",
and Lisa Martin, the "Grantee,"whose legaladdress is3495 County Road 214, Silt,Colorado

81652 and mailing addressisP.O. Box 2551, Glenwood Springs,Colorado 81602.

Grantor, for and in considerationof the sum of Sixteen Thousand Dollars ($16,000),the

receiptand sufficiencyof which ishereby acknowledged, does hereby remise,release,selland

QUITCLAIM unto the Grantee,and the Grantee'sheirsand assigns,forever,allthe right,title,

interest,claim and demand which the Grantor has in and to the followingdescribedwater rights
locatedinGarfieldCounty, Colorado:

Two (2)sharesof Class A stock in the Ware and Hinds Ditch, with itsheadgate
locatedon the west bank of Elk Creek, tributaryto the Colorado River,ata point
in the NE1/4 of Section 36, T. 5 S., R. 91 W., 6* P.M., Garfield County,
Colorado, adjudicated in: Case No. 103, Adjudicated on 5/11/1889 with

AppropriationDate 10/1/1883 for 5.0 c.f.s.,with AppropriationDate of 3/1/1886

for 10.3 c.f.s.,and with AppropriationDate 5/1/1888 for 5.5 c.f.s.;Case No. 767,

Adjudicated on 11/15/1897 with AppropriationDate 4/18/1896 for 1.6c.f.s.;Case

No. 779, Adjudicated on 6/15/1898 with Appropriation Date of 3/3/1896 for 0.2

c.f.s;Case No. 883, Adjudicated on 12/18/1900 with Appropriation Date of

10/8/1898 for 3.6 c.f.s.;and Case No. 3431, Adjudicated on 1/11/1943 with

AppropriationDate of 3/4/1921 for21.3 c.f.s.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the same, togetherwith alland singularthe appurtenancesand

privilegesthereuntobelonging, or in anywise thereuntoappertaining,and allthe estate,right,

title,interestand claim whatsoever of the Grantor,eitherinlaw or equity,to the only proper use,
benefitand behoof of Grantee,and theGrantee'sheirsand assigns,forever.

IN WITNE REOF, theGrantor has executed thisdeed on thedatesetforthabove.

By: Jéhn Kuersten

STATE OF COLORADO )

) ss.

GARFIELD COUNTY )

The foregoinginstrumentwas acknowledged before me this26 day of 6 , 2019, by
John Kuersten.

Witness my hand and officialseal.

My commission expires: zz- zozo

MEllNDAD BROWN

NoTARYPUBUC-STATEOl'COLORADO

NotaryIdentlfication#20164031948

MyCommissionExpires8/22/2020 lyotaryPubÚc



Glenwood Springs Office
901 Grand Avenue, Suite 201
Glenwood Springs, Colorado 81601
Telephone (970) 947-1936
Facsimile (970) 947-1937

GARFIELD & HECHT, P.C.
ATTORNEYS AT LAW

Since 1975

www.garfieldhecht.com

June 14, 2019

Haley M. Carmer
hcarmer@garfieldhecht.com

VIA E-MAIL
Arturo Alvarado
Community Resources and Housing 
Development Corporation
7305 Lowell Blvd, Suite #200
Westminster, Colorado 80030
E-mail: Arturo@crhdc.org

RE: Development Agreement for Lakota Ridge Senior Apartments
Notice of Intent to Pursue Remedies 

Dear Mr. Alvarado, 

As you know, Lakota Ridge Senior Apartments, LLC (“Lakota”) and the Town of New 
Castle (“Town”) entered into the Development Agreement for Lakota Ridge Senior Apartments 
dated August 3, 2016 (“Agreement”). The purpose of the Agreement was to set forth the terms 
and conditions under which Lakota would install and dedicate certain Public Improvements (as 
that term is defined in the Agreement) to the Town in connection with its development of the 
property located at 705 Castle Valley Boulevard. Pursuant to Section 21 of the Agreement, 
please accept this letter as notice of the Town’s intention to pursue remedies under the 
Agreement as a result of Lakota’s breach thereof.

Per Section 7 of the Agreement, the Public Improvements were to be completed by June 
30, 2018. Staff approved a six-month extension through December 31, 2018. Town Council then
approved a second six-month extension through May 31, 2019. To date, the Town has not been 
asked to inspect the Public Improvements to confirm they are complete, and the Town has not 
otherwise been advised that they are complete. Because Lakota has not finished and dedicated 
the Public Improvements within the time set forth in the Agreement, it is in breach. 

Town Council will consider finding Lakota in breach of the Agreement at its June 18, 
2019, meeting and authorizing staff to pursue the Town’s remedies under the Agreement. 
Pursuant to Section 21 of the Agreement, Lakota has 20 days from the date of this letter to cure
the breach before the Town exercises its remedies. If it is not feasible to complete the Public 
Improvements to the required standards within that timeframe, the Town may be willing to 
forebear enforcement of the Agreement if Lakota (a) deposits enough funds in the existing 
escrow account to cover the cost of completion of the Public Improvements or (b) extends the 
existing letter of credit until August 31, 2019.



Mr. Arturo Alvarado
June 14, 2019

Page 2 of 2

2043614_1

Please contact me if you have any questions or concerns. 

Best, 

GARFIELD & HECHT, P.C.

Haley M. Carmer

cc: David Reynolds (via e-mail) 



1 | P a g e  
 

 
Memorandum 

 
Date:    June 12, 2019 
 
To:      Mayor and Council 
 
Subject:  Golf Cart Open House Review 
 
From:    David Reynolds 
 
 
Purpose: 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to review the results and comment sheets which were submitted by residents 
during the Golf Cart / OHV Open House on June 6th.     Council may also wish to consider additional comments 
received via emails, phone calls, Facebook, and personal conversations. 
 
With over fifty total comments received Council can hold an open discussion using the information gathered to 
discuss the following: 
 

 Are the results of the information gathered sufficient to form a direction regarding this topic? 
 

 Is there additional information that Council would like staff to research regarding the use of Golf Carts and 
OHV’s on public roads? 

 
 What are the opinions of Council members regarding this topic based on the findings of the comments 
provided? 

 
 Does Council have a direction for staff concerning this topic? 

 
 Are there specific timelines for forming a direction on this topic? 
 

As this discussion is intended to discuss residents’ comments, please review the comments provided in the Council 
Packet prior to this discussion. 

Office of the Town Administrator 
Phone: (970) 984-2311 
Fax:  (970) 984-2716 
www.newcastlecolorado.org 

        Town of New Castle 
                450 W. Main Street 
                             PO Box 90 
         New Castle, CO  81647 



























































































































1 | P a g e  
 

 
Memorandum 

 
Date:    June 12, 2019 
 
To:      Mayor and Council 
 
Subject:  Sale of Town owned property 
 
From:    David Reynolds 
 
 
Purpose: 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to provide Council with an update concerning the sale of a Town owned Condo 
unit. 
 
Staff would also  like to discuss the possibility of  listing for sale a second Town owned condo unit, as well as 
discussing possible direction for the use or sale of additional properties on Main Street. 
 

Office of the Town Administrator 
Phone: (970) 984-2311 
Fax:  (970) 984-2716 
www.newcastlecolorado.org 

        Town of New Castle 
                450 W. Main Street 
                             PO Box 90 
         New Castle, CO  81647 







































 

 
Town Council Meeting 

Tuesday, May 7 

 
1 

 

 1 

 2 
New Castle Town Council Meeting 3 
Tuesday, May 7, 2019, 7:00 p.m. 4 

 5 
Call to Order 6 
Mayor A Riddile called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 7 
 8 
Pledge of Allegiance 9 
 10 
Mayor A Riddile asked that everyone remain standing in a moment of silence to honor 11 

long-time resident, LaRue Wentz, who had recently passed away.  12 
 13 
 14 
Roll Call 15 
 Present Councilor Mariscal 16 
   Councilor Owens 17 
   Councilor Hazelton 18 
   Mayor A Riddile 19 
   Councilor Copeland 20 
   Councilor G Riddile 21 
 Absent Councilor Leland 22 
 23 
Also present at the meeting were Town Administrator Dave Reynolds, Deputy Town Clerk 24 

Mindy Andis,  25 
 26 
MOTION: Mayor A Riddile made a motion to excuse Councilor Leland’s absence. 27 
Councilor Mariscal seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.  28 
 29 
 30 
Meeting Notice 31 
Deputy Town Clerk Mindy Andis verified that her office gave notice of the meeting in 32 

accordance with Resolution TC 2019-1. 33 
 34 
Conflicts of Interest 35 
There were no conflicts of interest. 36 
 37 
Agenda Changes 38 
There were no agenda changes. 39 
 40 
Citizen Comments on Items not on the Agenda 41 
There were no citizen comments.  42 
  43 
 44 
Consultant Reports 45 
Consultant Attorney – present for agenda items. 46 
Consultant Engineer – not present. 47 
 48 



 

 
Town Council Meeting 

Tuesday, May 7 

 
2 

 

Introductions: Officer Charles Bierbaum & Administrative Assistant Bart Mendoza 1 
Police Chief Tony Pagni introduced Officer Charles Bierbaum and described the hiring and 2 

training process he had gone through. Officer Bierbaum greeted the council and said that 3 

he had originally moved to the area in 2004, and was excited to be able to return and to 4 
serve the Town of New Castle. 5 
Town Administrator Dave Reynolds introduced Bart Mendoza, Administrative Assistant to 6 

the Town Clerk. He said that the department was happy to have Asst. Mendoza and that 7 

he had jumped into several projects right away, including preparing for the golf cart open 8 

house, and reorganization of the files in the vault. Asst. Mendoza told the council that he 9 

was pleased to be working for New Castle and looked forward to learning.   10 
 11 
 12 
Items for Consideration 13 
 14 
Consider Resolution TC 2019-8, A Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of 15 
New Castle Adopting a Directory of Fees and Charges for the Town (Amending 16 

Section 2(b)): Impound fees 17 

Police Chief Tony Pagni told the council that going back five years, the town had a shelter 18 

agreement with the Talbotts to house dogs that had been picked up. The facility at 19 

Talbotts was unlicensed and posed a potential liability for the town, so Chief Pagni 20 
obtained an agreement with Divide Creek Animal Hospital. He said that Divide Creek had 21 

recently closed their doors and the department had signed an agreement with the Rifle 22 

Animal Shelter. Unfortunately, it was more expensive to use the Rifle Shelter, thus the 23 

change in the fee schedule.  24 

MOTION: Mayor A Riddile made a motion to approve Resolution TC 2019-8, A 25 
Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of New Castle Adopting a Directory 26 

of Fees and Charges for the Town (Amending Section 2(b)): Impound fees. 27 

Councilor G Riddile seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.  28 

 29 

 30 
Consider Resolution TC 2019-9, A Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of 31 

New Castle, Colorado Adopting New Castle Rides and Reggae Festival as an 32 

Official Town Function 33 

Town Administrator Dave Reynolds told the council that New Castle Trails group had been 34 

in existence for a number of years, and they had done great work improving the tails 35 

system in town. He said that two years ago the group started a summer event that had 36 
grown significantly. In 2019 the event is called Rides & Reggae and the scale of the event 37 

had New Castle Trails concerned about liability issues. Administrator Reynolds said that 38 

the resolution being considered was to officially adopt the Rides & Reggae event as a town 39 

event, and to designate Adam Cornely and Joe Urnise of New Castle Trails as the 40 

organizers of the event. It also placed town staff in a supervisory position.  41 
Mr. Joe Urnise told the council that after some discussion with the town attorney, he and 42 

Mr. Cornely believed they could be held personally liable for any mishaps during the 43 

event, and they were uncomfortable.  44 

Mayor A Riddile asked if the liquor license would also be held by the town, and Councilor G 45 

Riddile said that it would. He also said the trails group was working on a plan to utilize 46 
ServSafe certified staff members from Colorado Animal Rescue (CARE) who would provide 47 

liquor service for free provided that all tips were donated to CARE. Councilor G Riddile said 48 



 

 
Town Council Meeting 

Tuesday, May 7 

 
3 

 

that Mr. Urnise, Mr. Cornely and himself would also be certified in the event the CARE 1 

staff could not cover all the shifts serving alcohol. Councilor G Riddile said that they would 2 

hire security personnel who would control the entryway/front desk and check guests’ 3 
identification.  4 

The council questioned why specific persons were named in the resolution. Councilor G 5 

Riddile said that New Castle Trails believed another resolution would have to be passed in 6 

2020 authorizing the event, and that specific volunteers needed to be named because of 7 

C.R.S 24-10-103, and because the town’s insurance carrier, CIRSA, needed specific 8 
persons listed on a volunteer list.  9 

Councilor Copeland asked why Roaring Fork Mountain Bike Association (RFMBA) did not 10 

sponsor the event since New Castle Trails was a d/b/a of RFMBA. Councilor G Riddile said 11 

that RFMBA held to the policy that they were a bike advocacy organization and not in the 12 

business of planning/organizing events.  13 

The council felt that proceeds from the event should come back to the town and New 14 
Castle Trails since it was a town event. Councilor G Riddile said that RFMBA maintained an 15 

account for New Castle Trails and that is where the proceeds would go. After some 16 

discussion, the council agreed that for now, the funds going to an account for New Castle 17 

Trails through RFMBA was fine, but in the future they wanted to streamline the process for 18 

receiving funds. 19 
MOTION: Councilor Owens made a motion to approve Resolution TC 2019-9, A 20 

Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of New Castle, Colorado Adopting 21 

New Castle Rides and Reggae Festival as an Official Town Function. Mayor A 22 

Riddile seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.  23 

 24 
 25 

 26 

Mayor A Riddile made a motion  at 7:43 p.m. to go into Executive Session (1) for 27 

conference with Town Attorney for purpose of receiving legal advice on specific 28 

legal questions under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(b); and (2) for purpose of 29 

determining positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations, 30 
developing strategy for negotiations, and/or instructing negotiators, under 31 

C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(e) concerning water rights. Councilor Hazelton 32 

seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.  33 

 34 

 35 
Executive session concluded. 36 
 37 

At the end of the executive session, Mayor A Riddile made the following statement: 38 

 39 

“The time is now 8:20 p.m. and the executive session has been concluded. The participants 40 

in the executive session were: Councilors Mariscal, Owens and Hazelton; Mayor A Riddile; 41 
Councilors Copeland and G Riddile; Town Administrator Dave Reynolds, Town Attorney 42 

Haley Carmer, Deputy Town Clerk Mindy Andis and Town Treasurer Loni Burk. For the 43 

record, if any person who participated in the executive session believes that any substantial 44 

discussion of any matters not included in the motion to go into the executive session 45 

occurred during the executive session, or that any improper action occurred during the 46 
executive session in violation of the Open Meetings Law, I would ask that you state your 47 

concerns for the record.” 48 



 

 
Town Council Meeting 

Tuesday, May 7 

 
4 

 

 1 
No concerns were stated.  2 
 3 

 4 

 5 
Direction: Microgrid Contract 6 
Administrator Reynolds explained that in 2017, the town had entered into a contract with 7 

a company called MicroGrid to purchase solar energy from an industrial-sized solar garden 8 

that had not been built yet. The town and Garfield Clean Energy(GCE) had reviewed the 9 

project and the council subsequently agreed to the contract, and to become a partner and 10 

receive solar credits from the solar grid. He said that staff had been notified that the solar 11 
array had been built and that the town would be under contract. MicroGrid, now called 12 

Pivot Energy, had provided an estoppel agreement with their finance company that 13 

needed a signature from the mayor. Administrator Reynolds said that the document 14 

essentially verified who and what the town was and verified that an agreement had been 15 

signed. Administrator Reynolds said that GCE and Attorney McConaughy had reviewed the 16 
estoppel, and that staff simply needed a motion authorizing either the mayor or 17 

administrator to sign it.  18 
MOTION: Mayor A Riddile made a motion to authorize either the mayor or the 19 

town administrator to sign the Pivot Energy subscriber estoppel certificate. 20 

Councilor Mariscal seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.  21 
 22 
Discussion: Downtown Plan 23 

Administrator Reynolds told the council that there was still some concern from Steve 24 
Craven who owned developable land in Castle Valley. Mr. Craven felt the plan would 25 

negatively affect his vested rights in his property. Administrator Reynolds said that he 26 

understood that when the P&Z began their review of the comprehensive plan, they felt 27 

that there was one deficiency in that there was nothing that concentrated on the 28 

downtown area. The Downtown Plan is meant to be a supplement to the Comprehensive 29 

Plan. It is a review document that gives a vision for the downtown. It is not controlling or 30 
binding, rather its purpose was to provide a guideline as to what can happen in the 31 

downtown. The council agreed to place a statement in the executive summary portion of 32 

the Downtown Plan to clarify the purpose of the Downtown Plan.  33 

The council and staff reviewed a few points in the plan and felt that it was a good 34 

visionary document.  35 
 36 

 37 

Consent Agenda 38 

April Bills of $429,555.09 39 

Capital Deli Hotel & Restaurant Liquor License Renewal 40 
Elk Creek Mining Company Hotel & Restaurant Liquor License Renewal 41 

MOTION: Mayor A Riddile made a motion to approve the consent agenda. 42 

Councilor G Riddile seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.  43 
 44 
   45 

Staff Reports 46 
Town Administrator – Administrator Reynolds told the council that the POSTR Committee 47 

got to meet with the local Girl Scout Troop who put together a fantastic presentation for a 48 



 

 
Town Council Meeting 

Tuesday, May 7 

 
5 

 

Buddy Bench at Bear Dance Park. Administrator Reynolds said that the town had been 1 

meeting with some local pastors and were organizing a potluck/memorial service for 2 

LaRue Wentz. Administrator Reynolds told the council that the new officer that Chief Pagni 3 
expected to hire had taken a position elsewhere, so he would be considering another 4 

applicant. He told the council that the starting pay in other jurisdictions was quite a bit 5 

higher than New Castle, and that may be something to consider. Administrator Reynolds 6 

told the council that public works had extended an offer to an applicant who would replace 7 

Greg Jacobs. Administrator Reynolds said that Town Treasurer Loni Burk had done an 8 
amazing job on the annual audit and had impressed the auditor. Administrator Reynolds 9 

told the council that the town was working on a combined river-marketing concept with 10 

some other towns. He said he was also working on a combined project with the Town of 11 

Silt called Sol-Smart which was a recognition program for solar-friendly towns. He said he 12 

hoped to beat out Silt as being more friendly. Administrator Reynolds said that he and 13 

John Wenzel will meet with the public works director and town manager of silt and discuss 14 
the possibility of cooperating on things, such as sharing a street-sweeper or jetting 15 

equipment. It is a deliberate effort by the town managers to be more collaborative up and 16 

down the valley. Administrator Reynolds said staff was working on the golf cart idea, and 17 

he said that Cinco de Mayo had gone very well. Administrator Reynolds said that he would 18 

be out the following Wednesday and part of Thursday.  19 
Town Clerk – Deputy Clerk Andis told the council that her department was training 20 
Administrative Assistant Bart Mendoza who was doing very well, and learning quickly. She 21 

said they had preliminary discussions with Planner Smith about having Asst. Mendoza 22 

assist the building department. Mayor A Riddile asked how the change in office hours was 23 

working. Administrator Reynolds said that he thought perhaps it was too early to tell, but 24 

there had not been any push back from the public. Deputy Clerk Andis said that the hours 25 
had been helpful since they were training a new employee. Administrator Reynolds said 26 

that in the few cases where people have asked him about the hours, the perception is that 27 

there was some cost savings in the hours change, and gave some possible awareness to 28 

staff efficiencies and budget concerns.  29 
Town Treasurer – Treasurer Burk told the council that although the audit was difficult, it 30 

was a great opportunity to learn about everything regarding the town finances. She said 31 
she was scheduled to go to Utah for some Caselle training.  32 
Town Planner – nothing to report. 33 
Public Works Director – nothing to report. 34 
 35 
Commission Reports 36 
Planning & Zoning Commission – nothing to report. 37 
Historic Preservation Commission – nothing to report. 38 
Climate Action Advisory Committee – nothing to report. 39 
Senior Program – Councilor Mariscal said that she had been unable to attend the meeting, 40 

so Clerk Harrison had gone instead.  41 
RFTA – nothing to report. 42 
AGNC – Councilor Hazelton said there had not been anything earth-shattering at the last 43 

meeting.  44 
GCE – nothing to report. 45 
EAB – Mayor A Riddile said he had attended the energy symposium and learned that in 46 

the six-county of the Western Slope, there were more than 11,000 jobs related directly 47 
and indirectly to oil and gas. There were 66,600 industry jobs. The gross domestic product 48 



 

 
Town Council Meeting 

Tuesday, May 7 

 
6 

 

of the region was 1.1 billion. Administrator Reynolds said another interesting item was 1 

that the forecast for severance tax revenues was supposed to climb slightly. Mayor A 2 

Riddile said that the Jordan Cove project was supposed to be up and running by 2025.  3 
 4 
Council Comments 5 
Councilor Owens asked if anyone knew when Burning Mountain Bakery would open. 6 
Administrator Reynolds said no. Councilor Copeland said that she heard it wouldn’t be 7 

until 2020. 8 
Councilor Owens said he understood EAT Bistro was expanding, and Administrator 9 

Reynolds confirmed that was true, they EAT would expand towards the west, and had 10 

been approved at HPC. He said they were working with Planner Smith on their building 11 

permits.  12 
Councilor Owens asked after Colton Odykirk. Treasurer Burk said Colton would return to 13 
Colorado the following week.  14 
Councilor Mariscal said she had been invited to be a speaker at Women In Government 15 

and it was interesting to understand how poorly women are treated on other councils, and 16 

she thanked the council for being so supportive. She said the conference was really great.  17 
Councilor Copeland said it was interesting learning how other women communicate in 18 

government.   19 
 20 
MOTION: Councilor Owens made a motion to adjourn. Mayor A Riddile seconded 21 
the motion and it passed unanimously.  22 
 23 
The meeting adjourned at 8:55 p.m. 24 
 25 
 26 
Respectively submitted, 27 
 28 
 29 
 30 
               31 
       Mayor Art Riddile 32 
 33 
 34 
 35 
        36 

Town Clerk Melody Harrison, CMC 37 

 38 



 

 

 1 

 2 
 3 

New Castle Town Council Meeting 4 
Tuesday, May 21, 2019, 7:00 p.m. 5 

 6 

Call to Order 7 
Mayr A Riddile called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 8 
 9 
Pledge of Allegiance 10 
 11 
Roll Call 12 
 Present Councilor Mariscal 13 
   Councilor Owens 14 
   Councilor Hazelton 15 
   Mayor A Riddile 16 
   Councilor Copeland 17 
   Councilor Leland 18 
   Councilor G Riddile 19 
 Absent None 20 
 21 
Also present at the meeting were Town Administrator Dave Reynolds, Town Clerk 22 
Melody Harrison, Public Works Director John Wenzel, Town Treasurer Loni Burk, 23 
Utilities Supervisor Daniel Becker and members of the public.  24 
 25 
Meeting Notice 26 
Town Clerk Melody Harrison verified that her office gave notice of the meeting in 27 
accordance with Resolution TC 2019-1. 28 
 29 
Conflicts of Interest 30 
There were no conflicts of interest. 31 
 32 
Agenda Changes 33 
Town Attorney David McConaughy explained to the council that the executive session 34 
was regarding a Ware and Hinds Ditch shares contract, and he asked for the change 35 
to the agenda to include a motion to approve those contracts. The council agreed. 36 
 37 
Citizen Comments on Items not on the Agenda 38 
There were no citizen comments.      39 
 40 
Consultant Reports 41 
Consultant Attorney – present for agenda items. 42 
Consultant Engineer – not present. 43 
 44 
 45 
Items for Consideration 46 
 47 
 48 
Councilor Bruce Leland – Spellebration 49 



 

 

Councilor Leland explained to the council that the New Castle Spellebration team, the 1 
New Castle Blues, had tied for first place at the 2019 Spellebration event. He 2 
presented Town Planner Paul Smith, Special Events Coordinator Debbie Nichols and 3 
Town Clerk Melody Harrison with 1st Place trophies. He also gave them a photo of the 4 
team at the event. In addition, the team would have the opportunity to keep the 5 
Literacy Outreach trophy for a time.  6 
The council congratulated the team for their win. 7 
 8 
Recess the Town Council Meeting, Convene as the Local Liquor Licensing Authority 9 
MOTION: Councilor Leland made a motion to recess the Town Council 10 
Meeting and to convene as the Local Liquor License Authority. Mayor A 11 
Riddile seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.  12 

 13 
Consider a Special Events Liquor License Application from the Town of New 14 
Castle for the New Castle Trails Rides and Reggae Event on August 10, 2019 15 
in VIX Ranch Park 16 
Clerk Harrison told the council that New Castle Trails representative Adam Cornely 17 
was unable to attend the meeting because he was in Denver.  18 
Clerk Harrison said that the liquor license application had come to the council in early 19 
February, and the council had voiced concern regarding the length of time that alcohol 20 
would be served and the liability issues related to the town holding the license for an 21 
event that was not a town event. She said that since that time, staff had worked with 22 
New Castle Trails representatives Adam Cornely and Joe Urnise, Attorney 23 
McConaughy, the town’s insurance company CIRSA and their Director, Tami Tonoue. 24 
The result was a resolution that adopted the event as a town event and authorized 25 
Adam Cornely and Joe Urnise as volunteer organizers of the event. The council had 26 
approved the resolution at the May 7, 2019 council meeting. The resolution placed the 27 
event under the umbrella of the town’s insurance coverage without the need for 28 
further riders or applications. Clerk Harrison said that Mr. Cornely had submitted a 29 
serving plan that included the use of a third-party for alcohol service and the 30 
utilization of security personnel to ID check and wrist bands.  31 
Clerk Harrison said that the application was complete, all fees had been paid and that 32 
staff recommended approval.  33 
MOTION: Councilor Leland made a motion to approve the Town of New Castle 34 
special events liquor license application for the New Castle Trails Rides and 35 
Reggae Event on August 10, 2019 with the conditions that there would be a 36 
100% identification check, that all servers would be ServSafe or TIPs 37 
certified and that New Castle Trails would provide a staffing schedule for 38 
alcohol service. Councilor Copeland seconded the motion and it passed 39 
unanimously.  40 

 41 
Consider a Special Events liquor License Application from the New Castle 42 
Community Market for the Community Market Sampling Garden in Burning 43 
Mountain Park on July 25, August 8 and September 12, 2019  44 
Clerk Harrison told the council that Noreen Nolan and New Castle Community Market 45 
were now a 501c-3 designated non-profit organization and were eligible to hold 46 
special events liquor licenses. Clerk Harrison said that for several years the town had 47 
held licenses for sampling gardens at the market during which the two liquor stores in 48 
town could bring in beer and wine vendors. She also said that Ms. Nolan and other 49 
members of the community market were ServSafe certified, that the application was 50 



 

 

complete and all fees had been paid. Clerk Harrison said that staff recommended 1 
approval.  2 
Ms. Nolan told the council that the first two sampling gardens would feature each of 3 
the town’s liquor stores, and the third sampling garden would feature the Brew Pub in 4 
conjunction with the chili roast.  5 
MOTION: Mayor A Riddile made a motion to approve the special events liquor 6 
license application from the New Castle Community Market for the New 7 
Castle Community Market Sampling Garden in Burning Mountain Park on July 8 
25, August 8 and September 12, 2019. Councilor Mariscal seconded the 9 
motion and it passed unanimously.  10 

 11 
Consider a Special Event Liquor License from the Community Market for the 12 
Ritter Plaza Music in the Park Event in Ritter Plaza on June 23 and July 19, 13 
2019 14 
Clerk Harrison explained that the Downtown Alliance was the organization who held 15 
the Ritter Plaza Music in the Park event; however, they were not eligible to hold a 16 
liquor license. Noreen Nolan and the New Castle Community Market had agreed to 17 
hold the liquor license on behalf of the Downtown Alliance. Clerk Harrison said that 18 
the members of the Downtown Alliance had been ServSafe certified, the application 19 
was complete and all the fees had been paid. Clerk Harrison said that staff 20 
recommended approval.  21 
MOTION: Councilor Hazelton made a motion to approve the special events 22 
liquor license application from the New Castle Community Market for the 23 
Ritter Plaza Music in the Park Event on June 23 and July 19, 2019. Councilor 24 
Mariscal seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.  25 
 26 
 27 
Adjourn the Local Liquor Licensing Authority, Reconvene the Town Council Meeting 28 
Mayor A Riddile made a motion to adjourn the local liquor licensing authority 29 
and reconvene the town council meeting. Councilor G Riddile seconded the 30 
motion and it passed unanimously.  31 

 32 
 33 
Executive Session (1) for conference with Town Attorney for purpose of 34 
receiving legal advice on specific legal questions under C.R.S. Section 24-6-35 
402(4)(b); and (2) for purpose of determining positions relative to matters 36 
that may be subject to negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations, 37 
and/or instructing negotiators, under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(e) 38 
concerning the purchase of Ware & Hinds Ditch shares - Cancelled 39 

 40 
Town Attorney David McConaughy told the council that unless the Council felt it was 41 
necessary, he did not see a need for the executive session. He told them there was a 42 
confidential memo they could review. He explained that the contracts were to provide 43 
the town the opportunity to review the eighteen shares of Ware & Hinds Ditch water 44 
rights for thirty days. He said that the recommendation was to authorize Town 45 
Administrator Dave Reynolds to sign the contracts that gave staff a thirty-day free 46 
look at the shares to do some due diligence investigation as to the value of the 47 
shares.  Attorney McConaughy said that the value to the town would be to use them 48 
in connection with some future water rights application where it would determine the 49 
acreage that the shares historically irrigated, dry that up and then use it to support a 50 
water rights augmentation plan for future uses. Attorney McConaughy said that the 51 



 

 

town had been charging a water rights cash-in-lieu fee for some time and banking the 1 
funds for opportunities such as this where the town could purchase senior water 2 
rights. He reminded the council that in 2002 the town’s rights had been called. The 3 
Ware & Hinds shares were generally the senior rights on Elk Creek, and purchasing 4 
them could prevent the town’s rights from being called in the future. Attorney 5 
McConaughy said that was part of what needed to be researched.  The council and 6 
staff discussed some details of water rights and water law, how seniority worked, how 7 
shares might be converted from an irrigation use to a municipal use and how the town 8 
may be able to finance the purchase if they were found to be valuable.  9 
 10 
Consider a Motion to Approve the Ware & Hinds Ditch Contracts 11 
 12 
MOTION: Councilor G Riddile made a motion to Approve the Ware & Hinds 13 
Ditch Contracts and to Authorize the Town Administrator to sign the 14 
contracts. Councilor Mariscal seconded the motion and it passed 15 
unanimously.  16 
 17 

 18 
Consider a Motion to Approve an Extension of the Closing Date for the Town-19 
Owned Property Located at 200 S E Avenue, #115, Windridge Condominiums 20 
Attorney McConaughy said that the contract to sell the town-owned Windridge 21 
Condominium unit had a closing date of May 31, 2019. The Town Charter required an 22 
ordinance to sell town-owned property, and staff had mistakenly thought a resolution 23 
would be appropriate. Because ordinances required two readings, the closing date of 24 
May 31 would be missed, so staff was asking for a motion to extend the closing date 25 
to June 20, 2019. It happened that the buyer had some family issues and had asked 26 
for an extension as well.  27 
MOTION: Councilor G Riddile made a motion to Approve an Extension of the 28 
Closing Date for the Town-Owned Property Located at 200 S E Avenue, #115, 29 
Windridge Condominiums. Councilor Mariscal seconded the motion and it 30 
passed unanimously.  31 

  32 
Consider Ordinance TC 2019-3, An Ordinance the New Castle Town Council 33 
Authorizing the Sale of Real Property (first reading) 34 
MOTION: Councilor G Riddile made a motion to approve Ordinance TC 2019-35 
3, An Ordinance the New Castle Town Council Authorizing the Sale of Real 36 
Property on first reading. Mayor A Riddile seconded the motion and it passed 37 
on a roll-call vote: Councilor Leland: yes; Councilor Owens: yes; Councilor 38 
Hazelton: yes; Councilor G Riddile: yes; Councilor Mariscal: yes; Mayor A 39 
Riddile: yes; Councilor Copeland: yes.  40 

 41 
Bulk Water Presentation 42 
Public Works Director John Wenzel told the council that Administrator Reynolds had 43 
asked him and Utilities Supervisor Daniel Becker to look into the idea of building a 44 
bulk water station. Director Wenzel provided a power point presentation that 45 
thoroughly explored the idea, including potential station sizes, locations and costs. 46 
The council felt the idea was very good, and they agreed that staff should pursue 47 
grant funding for the project.  48 
 49 

 50 



 

 

Consent Agenda 1 
April 2, 2019 council minutes 2 
April 8, 2019 council minutes 3 
MOTION: Councilor Owens made a motion to approve the consent agenda. 4 
Councilor G Riddile seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.  5 
 6 

   7 
Staff Reports 8 
Town Administrator – Administrator Reynolds told the council that CRHDC had 9 
requested their first draw against the escrow account for senior housing, but he 10 
thought it was likely they would not make the deadline of May 31 to complete 11 
everything necessary. Administrator Reynolds thought that CRHDC would need to 12 
request an extension of the TCO. He also said that it appeared that Merle and Leslie 13 
Means were back and would be managing both senior housing complexes. 14 
Administrator Reynolds said that the AGNC and Garfield County Oil and Gas are 15 
concerned with Senate Bill 181 that recently passed. He said that the town had 16 
entered into party-status agreement with AGND and Garfield County Oil and Gas to 17 
have them act as the town’s liaison/representative to speak on behalf of the town at 18 
the state level. The town will have the opportunity to review what would be talked 19 
about and reject anything that the town does not agree with. Administrator Reynolds 20 
said that there had been a combined Downtown Alliance and Chamber of Commerce 21 
meeting that had gone very well. Administrator Reynolds said that the Golf Cart open 22 
house was scheduled for June 6. He apologized that it had taken longer than 23 
expected. He gave the council members a copy of the open house flyer. He said that 24 
Administrative Assistant Bart Mendoza and Clerk Harrison had been working on 25 
creating some visual displays for the open house, and it was coming together nicely. 26 
Administrator Reynolds said he had met with Mike Hinkley of Mountain Waste & 27 
Recycling regarding some price increases for recycling, and they were very dramatic 28 
changes. He said the issue would be coming to council soon. Administrator Reynolds 29 
said there was a lot happening with the LoVa Trail project, so there would be an item 30 
on the next council agenda so he could update the council. Administrator Reynolds 31 
said that the town owned a second condominium at Windridge, and he wanted to 32 
discuss options with the council at a near-future meeting. Administrator Reynolds said 33 
that he a director Wenzel had worked out some new striping to create additional 34 
parking on 6th Street. He said it would be temporarily re-striped and hopefully it would 35 
alleviate some issues. Administrator Reynolds said there would be a P&Z meeting the 36 
next night that will essentially be a debrief of the prior meeting where they heard 37 
their first major land use application.  38 
Town Clerk – Clerk Harrison said that Administrative Assistant Bart Mendoza was 39 
working out wonderfully. She said he had been working on the OHVs on town streets 40 
project and was doing very well. Clerk Harrison said that she and Deputy Town Clerk 41 
Mindy Andis had attended a web meeting with the MuniCodeMeetings staff to learn 42 
the new agenda/meeting/packets software program. Clerk Harrison said they had also 43 
been working with MuniCodeWeb staff who would migrate the town’s website to a new 44 
platform. Clerk Harrison said that staff was working with the new IT company on the 45 
transition from Executech to ProVelocity.  46 
Town Planner – not present. 47 
Public Works Director – Director Wenzel said he was working on a grant application for 48 
an electric vehicle charging station. He said that Utilities Supervisor Becker had a new 49 
hire that would begin the following day. Director Wenzel said they had received 50 
approval from the FMLD to expand the scope of work on Bear Dance Park, so his 51 



 

 

department would begin that work shortly. Director Wenzel said that his department 1 
had received an FMLD grant for streets maintenance, the project had gone out to bid 2 
and the bids came back positive. Director Wenzel said they had received an FMLD 3 
grant for the UV disinfection system, and they had received work from the 4 
manufacturer that the equipment will be delivered in September, so they were 5 
working to get ready for that.  6 
Councilor Hazelton asked if Director Wenzel had looked any further into crosswalk 7 
safety with lighted signs. Director Wenzel said he had not had time but would get it 8 
done. Councilor Hazelton said he would sent some information to Director Wenzel.  9 
Utility Supervisor – Supervisor Becker said they were preparing for the lead a copper 10 
sampling project that would begin in June.  11 
Treasurer – Treasurer Loni Burk said she had been very busy with Debbie Guccini out. 12 
The council thanked her for working so hard.   13 
 14 
Commission Reports 15 
Planning & Zoning Commission – Councilor Copeland said they had approved the 16 
Columbo application, but the approval had a long list of conditions.  17 
Historic Preservation Commission – nothing to report. 18 
Climate Action Advisory Committee – nothing to report. 19 
Senior Program – nothing to report. 20 
RFTA – nothing to report. 21 
AGNC – nothing to report. 22 
GCE – Councilor Leland provided the council members with information regarding 23 
charging stations. Councilor Leland said that GCE had discussed their financial 24 
challenges because they would soon be working at a deficit. GCE had received a grant 25 
some time ago to provide low-interest loans for energy efficiency upgrades for low-26 
income households. Subsequently, two other agencies began providing low-interest 27 
loans at a better rate than GCE could, so that left a surplus of grant money that was 28 
not being used. GCE planned to approach the state to repurpose the grant funding for 29 
operations.  30 
EAB 31 
 32 
Council Comments 33 
Councilor Owens said that Bear Dance Park looked awesome.  34 
Councilor Hazelton asked everyone if Perry Sweeny from the library board had 35 
contacted the council members. Councilor Hazelton said that he was looking for 36 
feedback regarding the New Castle library operations.  37 
Councilor Hazelton said that parking on 7th Street and Main Street was not good. 38 
There were many people from Shady Court that were taking up the parking and the 39 
situation was likely much worse than realized. He felt it was something to look into. 40 
Councilor Hazelton said he thought that New Castle could advertise its restaurants at 41 
the KOA campground in Silt.  42 
Councilor Hazelton said that now that New Castle’s Dale Shrull was the managing 43 
editor of the Grand Junction Daily Sentinel he thought reaching out to him might be a 44 
good idea. He felt a there may be a story about what small towns would be losing 45 
with the downtrend of oil and gas monies.  46 
Councilor Copeland asked if the town’s fall clean-up day could be pushed back 47 
because all the leaves were not off the trees in early October. Director Wenzel said 48 
public works was happy to explore alternate dates. Clerk Harrison offered that MWR 49 
picked up bagged yard waste for free and she said she would e-mail that information 50 
to the council.  51 



 

 

Councilor G Riddile said that the City of Rifle was also struggling with their budget and 1 
they needed $1m annually for streets. They were considering assessing steep impact 2 
fees. 3 
Councilor G Riddile thanked Treasurer Burk for getting the sales tax update done. 4 
Councilor G Riddile told the council that New Castle Trails had received $5,000 in 5 
discretionary funds from the BOCC and that will go to Rides & Reggae, which would 6 
free up town funds for trail development.  7 
Mayor A Riddile said that the Town of Eagle was imposing a $1,300 fee on new 8 
residential homes to be dedicated to their police department. He felt that such fees 9 
were something the council could consider.  10 
Mayor A Riddile shared a project about New Castle done by a sixth grade student in 11 
Littleton. 12 
Mayor A Riddile congratulated Councilor Owens for winning his company’s Mariposa 13 
Award.  14 
 15 
 16 
MOTION: Mayor A Riddile made a motion to adjourn. Councilor Owens 17 
seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.  18 
 19 
The meeting adjourned at 8:33 p.m. 20 
 21 
 22 
Respectfully submitted, 23 
 24 
 25 
 26 
              27 
       Mayor Art Riddile 28 
 29 
       30 
Town Clerk Melody Harrison, CMC 31 

 32 



 

 
Special Town Council Meeting 

Wednesday, May 29, 2019 

 

1 

 

 1 

 2 
 3 

New Castle Special Town Council Meeting 4 
Wednesday, May 29, 2019, 10:00 a.m. 5 

 6 
 7 

Call to Order 8 
Mayor A Riddile called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. 9 
 10 
Pledge of Allegiance 11 
 12 
Roll Call 13 
 Present Councilor Mariscal (arrived at 10:02 a.m.) 14 
   Councilor Hazelton 15 
   Mayor A Riddile 16 
   Councilor Copeland (left at 11:21 a.m.) 17 
   Councilor Leland 18 
 Absent Councilor Owens 19 
   Councilor G Riddile 20 
 21 
Also present at the meeting were Town Administrator Dave Reynolds, Town Clerk 22 
Melody Harrison, Town Attorney David McConaughy and Public Works Director John 23 
Wenzel.   24 
 25 
Meeting Notice 26 
Town Clerk Melody Harrison verified that her office gave notice of the meeting in 27 
accordance with Resolution TC 2019-1. 28 
 29 
Conflicts of Interest 30 
There were no conflicts of interest. 31 
 32 
Agenda Changes 33 
There were no agenda changes. 34 
 35 
Citizen Comments on Items not on the Agenda 36 
There were no citizen comments. 37 
 38 
 39 
Items for Consideration 40 
 41 

 42 
Information and Discussion Regarding Revenue Matters 43 
Mayor A Riddile introduced Bill Ray of WR Communications, Inc.  44 
Mr. Ray greeted that council. He explained that he was currently working with the 45 
Town of Basalt and the Town of Eagle on their potential ballot issues.  46 



 

 
Special Town Council Meeting 

Wednesday, May 29, 2019 

 

2 

 

Mr. Ray showed a power point presentation, and he and the council discussed some 1 
basic strategies regarding how to place tax items on an election ballot.  2 

 3 
 4 

MOTION: Councilor Leland made a motion to adjourn. Mayor A Riddile 5 
seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 6 
 7 
The meeting adjourned at 11:29 a.m. 8 
 9 
 10 
Respectfully submitted, 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
              15 
       Mayor Art Riddile 16 
 17 
       18 
Town Clerk Melody Harrison, CMC 19 

 20 



1 

 

TOWN OF NEW CASTLE, COLORADO 
RESOLUTION NO. TC 2019-10 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF NEW CASTLE TOWN COUNCIL SUPPORTING 
THE APPLICATION FOR A GRANT FROM CHARGE AHEAD COLORADO  FOR 

THE CAPITAL PURCHASE OF AN ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING STATION 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of New Castle is a political subdivision of the State of Colorado, and 

therefore an eligible applicant for a grant awarded by Charge Ahead Colorado; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of New Castle has submitted a Grant Application of $12,950.00 for the 

capital purchase and construction of an electric vehicle charging station; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of New Castle supports the capital purchase and construction of an 

electric vehicle charging station if a grant of $9000.00 is awarded by Charge Ahead Colorado. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE Town of New Castle THAT: 

 

1.    The above recitals are hereby incorporated as findings by the Town of New Castle. 

 

2.    The Town of New Castle strongly supports the Grant Application. 

 

3.   If the grant is awarded, the Town of New Castle strongly supports the capital purchase of 

an electric vehicle charging station. 

 

4.   The Town of New Castle authorizes the expenditure of funds necessary to meet the 

terms and obligations of any grant awarded pursuant to a Grant Agreement with the 

Charge Ahead Colorado. 

 

5.    The project property is owned by the Town of New Castle and will be owned by The 

Town of New Castle for its foreseeable, useful life. The Town of New Castle will 

continue to maintain the properties in a high quality condition and will appropriate 

funds for maintenance annually. The estimated annual maintenance cost for the capital 

purchase of electric vehicle charging station is estimated to be $500.00 annually. 

 

6.    If a grant is awarded, the Town of New Castle hereby authorizes the Mayor to sign a Grant 

Agreement with the Charge Ahead Colorado. 

 

Introduced, Read and Adopted at a Regular Meeting of the Town Council of the Town of New 

Castle, Colorado, on June 18, 2019. 

 

TOWN OF NEW CASTLE 

 

__________________________ 

ATTEST:     Art Riddile, Mayor 

 

__________________________ 

Melody L Harrison, Town Clerk 
 


	0. Agenda
	A. Proclamation - July Parks and Recreation Month
	B. Request and Mutual Agreement Between Jim Columbo and the Town for a 30-Day Extension of a PUD Hearing Date for Eagle's Ridge
	C. Ware & Hinds
	Memo to Council 6.12.19  Water Rights Purchase
	Ware and Hinds Report 6 11 2019
	Copy of Water Rights Summary 6 10  2019
	Combined Recent Sales
	cb 1994 purchase deed
	chaney deed
	919519 QCD 15
	919518 QCD 25
	919655 QCD 2 25
	919728 QCD 2 25
	919782 QCD 2 25


	E. Consider Declaration of Breach of Developemnt Agreement for Lakota Ridge Senior Apartments
	F. Golf Cart-OHV Open House Findings Report
	Memo to Council 6.12.19  Golf Cart Open House Review
	DOC121

	G. Condo Offer 6.13.19 120k
	H. Consent Agenda
	H-1. Consent Agenda - May 7, 2019 minutes
	H-2. Consent Agenda - Resolution TC 2019-10 - Supporting a Charge Ahead Colorado Grant Application for Electric Vehicle Charge Stations




